
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Monday, 10 October 2022, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Fiona Hanlon 

Tom Harvey 

Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

John Holmes 

Pete McSweeney 

Matt Severn (Vice-Chairman) 

Peter Thornton  

 

Independent Person 
  

David Tweddle 

Parish Members 
 

Leith Hallatsch 

Peter Smillie   

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Friday, 30 September 2022 
 
Julia Krier, Legal, Governance and Democracy Senior Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 6 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 14 March 2022 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  TERMS OF REFERENCE  7 - 8 

 To note the Terms of Reference for the Standards Committee.   

6  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW, COMPLAINTS 
RECEIVED FROM APRIL 2021 TO MARCH 2022  

9 - 24 

 To receive the annual report of the Local Government Ombudsman for 2021/22 
and the summary of complaints and compliments received from April 2021 to 
March 2022. 

 

7  CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  25 - 30 

 To note the report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer with regards to complaints 
under the Council’s Standards Arrangement from the date of the last update to 
the Committee on 14 March 2022. 

 

8  DISTRICT REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER 
REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  

31 - 34 

 To review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other interests for District 
Council Members and co-optees for the period up to October 2022. 

 



9  PARISH REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER 
REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  

35 - 38 

 To consider the review of the Parish register of disclosable pecuniary and other 
interests for Parish Councillors since the Committee’s last review on 11 October 
2021 to present. 

 

10  EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  39 - 46 

 To review the register of interests, gifts and hospitality for employees and 
Members since the last update to the Committee in October 2021. 

 

11  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  47 - 48 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no Part II documents to be considered in this agenda.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



6 
14.03.2022 Standards Committee 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Monday, 14 March 2022, at 
2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

Matt Severn (Vice-Chairman) 
 

John Holmes 
 

Pete McSweeney 
 

Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillor Peter Thornton and David 
Tweddle (Independent Person). 
 

Officers 
 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

James Cartwright Case Management - Support Services 

 

S/15 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2021. 
 

S/16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were raised. 
 

S/17 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
There were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

S/18 APPOINTMENT OF PARISH REPRESENTATIVE  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Leith Hallastch, in the capacity of Chair of Cumbria 
Association of Local Councils (CALC), be appointed as a Parish Council Co-optee to 
the Standards Committee. 
 

S/19 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022  
 
RESOLVED – That the draft Annual Report of Standards Committee 2021/2022, 
subject to minor amendments in consultation with the Chair of Standards Committee, 
be approved for referral to Council. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



7 
14.03.2022 Standards Committee 
 

 

S/20 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report and noted that as of the date of the Committee meeting there were no 
outstanding complaints. Since the date of writing the report, the matter listed in 
Appendix 1 (with a date of receipt of 19 January 2022) had been discussed with the 
Independent Person and it had been decided that no further action was required. 
External legal assistance had been utilised for a number of complaints, which had 
proved helpful.  
 
A query was raised as to the process for any outstanding Code of Conduct complaints 
after 31 March 2022. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) advised that the aim would be not to have any outstanding matters 
at that date, but she would look into the position. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/21 REVIEW OF DISPENSATIONS - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report.  
 
RESOLVED – That the continuation of the existing dispensations for a period of one 
year as detailed in the report be approved. 
 

S/22 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Chairman introduced the work programme.  

 
RESOLVED - That the Standards Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 
 

S/23 LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) provided a 
brief verbal update in relation to Local Government Re-organisation noting that the 
Westmorland and Furness Joint Committee would start meeting in the coming weeks.  
It was noted that there was a lot of preparatory work to be undertaken prior to vesting 
day and part of that would be related to Standards, including the Code of Conduct.   
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.20 p.m. 

Page 6



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 

Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions 

2.7 STANDARDS COMMITTEE (SEVEN DISTRICT MEMBERS - SEE ARTICLE 9 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION) 

Functions Delegation of Functions 

The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct for 
elected and co-opted members of the Council 

No onward delegation. 

To advise the council on the adoption or revision of its Code of 
Conduct and additional roles and functions as detailed in Article 
9.03 

No onward delegation. 

To monitor and advise the council about the operation of the Code 
of Conduct in the light of best practice, changes in the law, relevant 
guidance. 

No onward delegation. 

Assistance to members and co-opted members of the authority No onward delegation. 

To ensure that all members of the Council have access to training 
in all aspects of the member Code of Conduct, that this training is 
actively promoted, and that members are aware of the standards 
expected from local councillors under the Code 

No onward delegation. 

In consultation with the Independent Person, to grant dispensations 
up to a maximum of 4 years in the following circumstances –  

1. That he/she considers that without the dispensation the number 
of persons prohibited from participating in any particular matter 
would be so great a proportion of the body transacting the business 
as to impede the transaction of the business. 

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different 
political groups on the body transacting any particular business 
would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating 
to the business. 

3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Cabinet would be 
able to participate on this matter. 

4.That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the 
interests of persons living in the authority’s area 

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to 
grant a dispensation. 

The power to grant 
dispensations with regards 
to 1, 2 and 3 has been 
delegated to the Monitoring 
Officer, in consultation with 
the Independent Person, 
with an appeal to the 
Standards Committee 

Other functions 

Functions relating to standards of conduct of members under any 
relevant provision of, or regulations made under the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

The Monitoring Officer has 
delegated functions as set 
out in the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements. A 
Sub-Committee/Hearing 
Panel of the Standards 
Committee of 3 members 
will, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, deal 
with functions in relation to 
hearings relating to 
Standards of conduct of 
Members and co-opted 
members 

Page 7

Item No.5



Functions Delegation of Functions 

Power to recommend payments or the provision of other benefits in 
cases of maladministration, etc. 

No onward delegation. 

Power to shortlist and interview candidates and make 
recommendations to Council regarding appointment of Independent 
Persons. 

An ad hoc sub-committee of 
three Members. 

 

A TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE/HEARING PANEL  

(1) In the event that a hearing is required in accordance with the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements, a Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel shall be convened to hear and determine 
any allegations that a member or co-opted member of the Council or a Town/Parish Council has 
failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

(2) Composition. The Hearing Panel shall comprise three members of the Standards Committee.  

(3) Quorum. The quorum for a meeting shall be three members  

(4) Frequency of Meetings. The Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel shall meet as and 
when required to hear and determine any allegation(s) against an elected member or co-opted 
member of the Council. 

 

Page 8



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 10 October 2022 

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, 
Complaints received from April 2021 to March 

2022 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Simon McVey, Director Strategy, Innovation and Resources  

Report Author: Vicky McDonald – Operational Lead People, Welfare and Income 
Maximisation 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the Standards Committee receive the annual report of the Local Government 
Ombudsman for 2021/22 and the summary of complaints and compliments received 
from April 2021 to March 2022. The learning from complaints is applied to the 
improvement of Council services. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that these reports are received and recent decisions of the 
Local Government Ombudsman noted by the Committee.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council strives to improve customer service and to support this, complaints and 
compliments data has been monitored for a number of years.  All complaints, 
comments and compliments are recorded and managed by the Customer and 
Commercial Services Case Management Team. 

3.2 In May 2020, in line with customer connect, the council implemented an online 
system for logging, monitoring and responding to customer comments, compliments 
and complaints. This approach supports the council to ensure that complaints are 
responded to within the appropriate timeframe and all relevant documents are stored 
in a central location, and provides a much simpler way for customers to report any 
complaints.  

3.3 Following the implementation of the online complaints reporting system the council 
introduced a streamlined complaints policy reducing the levels of complaint stages 
from three to two.  

3.4  Over the period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 the council received a total of 658 
complaints and enquiries through the customer complaints channels. These channels 
include emails to the complaints address, letters addressed to complaints or through 
the online complaints reporting system.  

Page 9

Item No.6



3.5 The 658 enquires received through the complaints, comments and compliments 
process are broken down by the following:  

 302 Stage 1 complaints investigated 

 13 Stage 2 complaints investigated 

 111 were not classed as a complaint (i.e. request for service or information) 

 53 enquiries were resolved through an informal solution 

 85 enquiries received, SLDC was not the governing authority (i.e. Cumbria 
County Council, Registered Housing Providers) 

 94 were compliments 

3.6 The total number of formal complaints logged between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 
2022 was 315.  This shows an overall increase of 56 (22%) in comparison to 259 
received during 2020/2021.  Year on year comparisons from 2017 to 2022 are shown 
in Appendix 1, identifying significant percentage increases in complaints in 
2020/2021 and 2021/2022, compared to percentage increases in 2018/2019 and 
2019/2020.  The increase in the number of complaints received since 2020 could 
also be reflective of the changes made to the policy in May 2020 and the simplified 
on line channels introduced to allow complaints to be made.  

3.7 The total number of stage 1 complaints logged between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 
2022 was 302.  This shows an increase of 67 (29%) stage 1 complaints made in 
comparison to the 235 made in 2020/2021. 

3.8 The total number of stage 2 complaints logged between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 
2022 was 13, a decrease of 11 (46%) compared to 24 in 2020/2021.  The relatively 
low levels of stage 2 complaints made indicate that the vast majority of complaints 
are resolved to customer satisfaction at stage 1. 

3.9 The reasons for complaints are wide and varied and there is no underlying trend, 
although during 2021/2022, the complexity of a significant amount of complaints 
made increased based on previous years.  However, it should be noted that the 
impacts of the COVID 19 pandemic continued to impact on service delivery in some 
areas due to additional demands placed on local authorities, self-isolation, and 
increased absence of vital resources, which impacted on the number of complaints 
received.  In particular, challenges in delivering refuse services were apparent due to 
the lack of  availability and recruitment of qualified drivers nationally, and resources 
in some areas, particularly revenues and environmental protection, were diverted to 
develop and deliver government mandated schemes such as business grants, and 
test and trace, which inevitably impacted on delivering business as usual and it could 
be considered was attributable to the increase in complaints compared to 2020/2021 
related to those service areas.  it could be considered that prolonged periods of 
lockdown and isolation was a contributing factor to the increased amount of 
complaints received.     

3.10   A breakdown of the total number of complaints received relating to service areas 
(Appendix 1) shows that 166 (53%) of the total number of complaints received were 
related to 2 predominant service areas, refuse, recycling and Streetscene (34%) 
which is indicative of the large number of public interactions that take place, and 
planning (19%), and is comparable to 2020/2021.  2021/2022 saw significant 
increases in complaints for council tax and business rates, and environmental 
protection which is reflective of the challenges experienced in those service areas as 
explained above.  It should be noted that the council undertake millions of customer 
interactions and transactions each year, almost 3 million transactions alone relate to 
refuse and recycling for over 55,000 households.  

Page 10



3.11 The council recognises the value of complaints made and uses the insight gained to 
drive service improvements and promote a culture that is open to challenge, with a 
willingness to change, considering the wider implications, as opposed to focusing on 
resolution of individual issues.  Officers involved in complaint resolution apply 
lessons learned to identify opportunities for continuous improvement, and strive to 
turn what may initially be a negative issue into a positive outcome.    An example of 
the application of this approach would be following negative feedback with regards to 
the council tax section of the website, which was preventing a customer from 
calculating their council tax charge, the web team worked collaboratively with the 
Revenues team to improve the usability of the content, adding further functionality to 
allow this to happen.  Following the changes applied, positive feedback was received 
from the customer who was able to then calculate the council tax.   

3.12 Further examples of continuous improvements made to existing processes as a 
result of complaints received include revising the procedure in relation to issuing 
council tax refunds to the estate of a deceased tax payer, at what is a difficult and 
sensitive time for the bereaved, removing the need to contact the Executors, and 
directing the refund into the bank account of the deceased person.  This has resulted 
in refunds being issued in a much timelier manner, minimising unnecessary contact 
and delays.  In addition, the Disabled Facilities Grants procurement process, policy 
and procedures have recently been revised and reviewed based upon lessons 
learned as a result of a particularly complex complaint, all of which should result in a 
more streamlined, transparent and positive experience for customers and will ensure 
that in the event of substandard works carried out by contractors, the appropriate 
contractual arrangements will be enforced as appropriate.  

3.13 The complaints policy aims to respond to all formal complaints within 10 working 
days. A total of 61% (192) complaints were responded to within 10 working days.  Of 
the 39% (123) falling outside of this time, the majority were more complex complaints 
requiring detailed investigations and on some occasions, required a site visit.  It 
should also be noted that Officers make every effort to respond within the 10 day 
deadline, however, additional challenges during 2021/2022 has impacted on 
response times.  Every effort will be made during 2022/2023 to increase the 
percentage of complaints responded to within the 10 working days and process 
changes will be introduced to improve response times. 

3.14 Over the period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 the council received a total of 94 
compliments through the customer compliments channels.  A breakdown of the 
compliments received by service area is contained within Appendix 2.  23% (24) of 
compliments received relate to Street scene, 19% (20) related to council staff 
conduct and 10% (11) related to Bereavement Services. 

3.15 In accordance with the new streamlined approach to working through customer 
connect, all compliments and complaints are logged and responded by the 
Complaints Administration Team. This provides a more effective way to monitor the 
appropriate stages and storage of documents to support Local Government 
Ombudsman investigations.  

3.16 Attached to this report members will find a copy of the Local Government 
Ombudsman Annual Review 2021/2022 letter (Appendix 3).  

3.17 During this reporting period the Local Government Ombudsman made a decision on 
16 cases (Appendix 4), 10 of which were in relation to planning and development, 2 
in relation to highways and transport, 3 in relation to environmental services and 
public protection and regulation, and 1 to corporate and other services. In 
comparison, there were 9 decisions in 2020/2021, 13 decisions in 2019/2020, 7 
decisions in 2018/19, 7 decisions in 2017/18 and 10 decisions in 2016/17.  

Page 11



3.18  In 2021/2022 no decisions were upheld against the council as the Ombudsman did 
not find any evidence that the council acted with maladministration. As a comparison, 
an average of 51% of decisions for similar councils are upheld. 

This annual review findings are also available on the Local Government Ombudsman 
website.  

3.19 The council continues to work hard to resolve any complaints that arise before any 
referral to the Ombudsman.  

3.20   Members are asked to receive the report. 

 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Complaints data  

2 Compliments received during 2020/2021 and 2021/22 by service area 

3 Annual Review letter of the LGO 2021/2022 

4 SLDC LGO complaints and decisions 2021/2022 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Not applicable 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1  There are no alternative options, this report is only for the Committee to note. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable   

Human Resources 

7.2 Not applicable   

Legal 

7.3 No issues to raise 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment?  No not 
applicable 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No    

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable 

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Reputational as a result of 

adverse complaints 

Reputation of the Council is 

diminished 

Regular review of 

complaints policy and 

handling of complaints 

Page 12



Contact Officers 

Vicky McDonald, Operational Lead People, Welfare and Income Maximisation, 01539 793329, 
Vicky.McDonald@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Customer feedback policy Customer feedback policy (southlakeland.gov.uk)  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer  07.09.22  07.09.22 

Monitoring Officer  07.09.22   28.09.22 

CMT  06.09.22   08.09.22 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A  

Portfolio Holder 09.09.22 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 13

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/7122/customer-feedback-policy-accessible.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1 
 

 

Complaints received by year 

 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 

Stage 1 97 121 140 235 302 

Stage 2 19 20 14 24 13 

Stage 3 10 9 6 N/A N/A 

Total 126 150 160 259 315 

% increase/decrease 
on previous year 

-0.5% 19% 7% 62% 22% 

 

 

Complaints received by service area   

Service Area 2019/2020 
total received 

2020/2021 
total received 

2021/2022  
total received 

Refuse and 
recycling 

44 94 107 

Planning 33 34 59 

Parking 17 5 12 

Staff 12 2 3 

Environmental 
Health 

5 11 19 

Housing 5 2 10 

Council Tax and 
Business rates 

4 17 35 

Private water supply  4 0 1 

Licensing 3 6 5 

Parks and Open 
Spaces 

N/A N/A 14 

Locality N/A N/A 11 

Customer Services N/A N/A 10 

Other 33 80 29 

Covid 19 breaches 0 8 0 

Total 160 259 315 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Appendix 2 
 

Compliments received by service area   

Service Area  2020/2021 
total received 

2021/2022  
total received 

Street Scene, street cleansing 65 29 

Business Grants 4 2 

SLDC general 2 0 

Arboriculture 2 2 

Housing 0 8 

Homelessness 0 3 

Town View Fields Hostel 0 3 

Recruitment 1 0 

Staff 8 20 

Customer Services 0 4 

Locality 0 1 

Complaints 0 1 

Lake Wardens 2 1 

Council Tax 1 0 

Grounds Maintenance 0 3 

Parks and Open Spaces 1 1 

Parking 1 4 

Bereavement Services 2 11 

Covid Marshalls 
 

1 1 

Total 90 94 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



20 July 2022 

By email 

Mr Conway 
Chief Executive 
South Lakeland District Council 

Dear Mr Conway 

Annual Review letter 2022 

I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2022. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things 

right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

APPENDIX 3

Page 19



Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map,                   

Your council’s performance, on 27 July 2022. This useful tool places all our data and information 

about councils in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your 

Council, read the public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council 

has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know your organisation, like ours, will have been through a period of adaptation as the 

restrictions imposed by the pandemic lifted. While some pre-pandemic practices returned, many 

new ways of working are here to stay. It is my continued view that complaint functions have been 

under-resourced in recent years, a trend only exacerbated by the challenges of the pandemic. 

Through the lens of this recent upheaval and adjustment, I urge you to consider how your 

organisation prioritises complaints, particularly in terms of capacity and visibility. Properly 

resourced complaint functions that are well-connected and valued by service areas, management 

teams and elected members are capable of providing valuable insight about an organisation’s 

performance, detecting early warning signs of problems and offering opportunities to improve 

service delivery. 

I want to support your organisation to harness the value of complaints and we continue to develop 

our programme of support. Significantly, we are working in partnership with the Housing 

Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling code. We are aiming to consolidate our 

approaches and therefore simplify guidance to enable organisations to provide an effective, quality 

response to each and every complaint. We will keep you informed as this work develops, and 

expect that, once launched, we will assess your compliance with the code during our 

investigations and report your performance via this letter. 

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. We adapted our courses during the Covid-19 pandemic to an 

online format and successfully delivered 122 online workshops during the year, reaching more 

than 1,600 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 20

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


South Lakeland District Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/22  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

Complaints upheld 

  

0% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
51% in similar organisations. 

 
 

0                          
upheld decisions 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 4 

investigations for the period 
between 1 April 2021 to 31 March 

2022 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the organisation 

 

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 

 

0% 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Appendix 4 
 

 

Local Government Ombudsman Complaints 2021/2022 

 

Complaints received 

Category Decision Decision reason 

Planning & Development Closed after initial enquiries Not warranted by alleged mal/service failure 

Planning & Development Closed after initial enquiries 26B(2) not made in 12 months 

Planning & Development Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - advice given 

Planning & Development Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - advice given 

Planning & Development Not upheld No maladministration 

Planning & Development Not upheld No maladministration 

Planning & Development Not upheld No worthwhile outcome achievable by further investigation 

Planning & Development Not upheld No worthwhile outcome achievable by further investigation 

Planning & Development Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision - advice given 

Corporate & Other Services Closed after initial enquiries  Not warranted by alleged mal/service failure 

Highways & Transport Closed after initial enquiries  Not warranted by alleged mal/service failure 

Highways & Transport Referred back for local resolution  Premature Decision - advice given 

Environmental Services & Public Protection & 
Regulation Closed after initial enquiries No worthwhile outcome achievable by further investigation 

Environmental Services & Public Protection & 
Regulation Closed after initial enquiries 

Other reason not to investigate 
 

Environmental Services & Public Protection & 
Regulation Referred back for local resolution Premature Decision – advice given 

 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 10 October 2022 

Code of Conduct Complaints 

 
Portfolio:  Cllr Eamonn Hennessy – Customer and Locality Services Portfolio 

Holder 

Report from:  Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Good governance links to the Council’s achievement of 
its Council Plan priorities and objectives. 
 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the Standards Committee notes the report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer with 
regards to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangement from the date of the 
last update to the Committee on 14 March 2022.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Standards Committee notes the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews any 
complaints received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of the 
Member’s Code of Conduct, and after consultation with the Independent Person, 
takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. 

3.2  Members were last updated in March 2022. There are 3 new complaints that have 
been received since April 2022.  Presently there are 2 active complaints at the date of 
writing this report.  An updated Appendix 1 is attached. 

3.3  Members are asked to note the report. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Code of Conduct Complaint matters since April 2022 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Not applicable 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 There are no alternative options to report, the report is to note only. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Page 25

Item No.7



Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identified. 

Legal 

7.3 The Council is required to ensure that it accords with the requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011. 
 

7.4 The Council has adopted Standards Arrangements within which any complaints 
against members are considered. There are no issues to raise in this report. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.5 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.6 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable. 

7.7 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

Page 26



Equality and Diversity 

7.8 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No    

7.9 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable. 

7.10 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

That the Council fails to comply with 

the requirements of the Localism 

Act 2011 

Challenge to the Council’s 

governance arrangements  

Ensure appropriate 

arrangements are in 

place to ensure 

compliance with the 

legislation. 

Contact Officers 
Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk   

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 27/09/22 27/09/22 

Deputy Monitoring Officer Report Author Report Author 

CMT N/A N/A 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist Report Author 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 27/09/22 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 27

mailto:%20julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:%20julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

Page 28



Appendix 1 – Code of Conduct Complaints Update - Since April 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The matters listed as not closed are the subject of further enquiries/clarifications, further to which meetings will be organised with the Independent 

person in accordance with our procedures.  

Complaint from 
Councillor/officer/ 
member of the public 

Date 
received 

Nature of 
complaint 

Complaint 
against 

File 
closed? 

Independent 
Person 
consulted 

Local 
Resolution? 

Outcome 

Member of the public  11 May 
2022 

Standards 
of conduct 

Two District 
Councillors  

Yes Yes Yes No further 
action 

Member of the public  
 

14 July 
2022  

Standards 
of conduct 

District 
Councillor 

No TBC TBC TBC 

Member of the public  29 July 
2022 

Standards 
of conduct 

Parish 
Councillor  

No TBC TBC TBC 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 10 October 2022 

District Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other 
Registrable Interests 

 

Portfolio:   Not Applicable 

Report from:  Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Julia Krier– Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community – N/A 

A fairer South Lakeland – Openness and transparency will help to provide a fairer South 
Lakeland 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 The Standards Committee reviews the register of disclosable pecuniary and other 
interests for District Council Members and co-optees for the period October 2021 to 
the date of writing this report (26 September 2022). 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Standards Committee notes the review of the District 
Register of Interests. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 members are required to disclose those disclosable 
pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other interests which the 
Council has decided should be registered in the Register of Interests form. 

3.2 Council resolved on 19 June 2012 to adopt the other registrable interests as detailed 
in the Register of Interests form, and the Monitoring Officer is required to maintain the 
register and ensure that it is available for inspection, as required by the Act, which also 
includes being available on the Council’s website. When looking at Councillor’s details 
on the website there are links to the Register of Interests forms. 

3.3 The Monitoring Officer recently reminded all District Council members to ensure that 
their Registers of Interests are up to date in accordance with the legal requirement to 
notify any changes within 28 days of them occurring. 

Page 31

Item No.8



3.4 Since the last report to Standards Committee on this matter in October 2021, no District 
Councillors have resigned from their position.  

3.5 The eight Parish/Town Council Members co-opted onto the Lake Administration 
Committee following Parish Elections in May 2022 have all either completed a new 
form or have confirmed that there have been no changes to their Register of Interests. 

3.6 Members are requested to note this annual review of the registers. 

3.7 Following a request from members of the Standards Committee, officers identified a 
way to streamline and modernise the process for Members to update their Register of 
Interest forms using the existing Mod.Gov system. However, owing to the increased 
workload of officers in supporting the Local Government Reorganisation process and 
staffing issues, it has been not possible to prioritise at this time progressing with 
modernising the Mod.Gov system.  

 Confirmation of reading and understanding the new Councillor Code of Conduct 

3.8 The Standards Committee should note that currently responses from five (5) District 
Councillors are awaited to confirm that they have understood the new Code of 
Conduct. A training session for members was last held in September 2021 online; 
twenty-one (21) members attended and thirty (30) members did not attend.  A 
recording of the session is available for all members to view online.   

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 All members have been reminded to ensure that their Register of Interests is 
completed or up to date. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options. The annual review is part of the Committee’s Work 
Programme. 

6.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

6.1 There are no direct financial implications of this report but the Register of Interests is 
an essential step in identifying related parties for review and potential disclosure in the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts which is then audited by the Council’s external 
auditors and compared to national registers of company and charity directors.  

Human Resources 

6.2 No issues identified. 

Legal 

6.3 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the Code of Conduct and 
declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as appropriate. Failure to comply with the 
legislation with regard to disclosure and participation at meetings on disclosable 
pecuniary interests is a criminal offence. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

6.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

6.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: Not 
Applicable 

Page 32



6.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 x   

 Air Quality  x   

 Biodiversity  x   

 Impacts of Climate Change  x   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials or 
travel 

 x   

 Active Travel  x   

Economy 
and Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 x   

 Jobs and levels of pay  x   

 Healthier high streets  x   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 x   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  x   

 Access to housing  x   

 Crime  x   

 Social connectedness  x   

Equality and Diversity 

6.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

6.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
Applicable 

6.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Page 33



Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Registers not maintained or 

incomplete 

Members could be in 

breach of the code/ 

legislation 

Regular monitoring of code 

and sufficient awareness 

and training 

Members fail to make 

appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 

failure to declare or 

participating in 

proceedings where they 

have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 

declarations are made and 

registers up to date and 

training provided 

Contact Officers 

Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 28/09/2022 28/09/22 

Deputy Monitoring Officer Report Author Report Author 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 28/09/2022 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee - 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 34

mailto:julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk


South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 10 October 2022 

Parish Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other 
Registrable Interests 

 

Portfolio:   Not Applicable 

Report from:  Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer)   

Wards:  Not Applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community – N/A 

A fairer South Lakeland – Openness and transparency will help to provide a fairer South 
Lakeland 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the Standards Committee considers the review of the Parish register of 
disclosable pecuniary and other interests for Parish Councillors since the Committee’s 
last review on 11 October 2021 to present.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the review of the Parish Register of 
Interests. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 Parish/Town Councillors are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other interests 
which their local council has decided should also be registered in the Register of 
Interests form. 

3.2 Council at its meeting on 19 June 2012 encouraged Parish/Town Councils to adopt 
the District Code of Conduct, and the majority of Parishes/Towns within the District 
have done this and also adopted the same “other registrable interests”. The Committee 
will appreciate that the Council has recently adopted a new Code of Conduct and this 
has been sent to CALC for wider distribution to the Parish / Town Councils.  

3.3 As with the District Council the Monitoring Officer is required to maintain the register 
and ensure that it is available for inspection, as required by the Act, which also includes 

Page 35

Item No.9



being available on the Council’s website. Parish/Town Councils must also ensure that 
the interests appear on their Parish/Town Council website if they have one. 

3.4      In May 2022 there were 7 parish elections in Allithwaite and Cartmel Parish Council, 
Dent Parish Council, Garsdale Parish Council, Kendal Town Council, Lower Holker 
Parish Council, Natland Parish Council and Sedbergh Parish Council. The Monitoring 
Officer has received a register form from all newly elected Parish Councillors as 
required. Re-elected Parish Councillors have provided either new or updated forms at 
our request, with the exception of 10 re-elected councillors who last submitted register 
forms after their previous elections in 2018.  

3.5 A reminder has also been sent out to all Parish Clerks of the need for all Parish/Town 
Councillors to keep their declaration of interest forms up to date and to notify of any 
changes within 28 days of them occurring.   

3.6 Members are requested to note the review of the parish registers. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 All Parish Clerks have been reminded of the need for all Parish/Town Council register 
of interests to be kept up to date in accordance with the relevant legislation. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options. The annual review is part of the Committee’s work 
programme. 

6.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

6.1 Not applicable 

Human Resources 

6.2 No issues identified 

Legal 

6.3 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the applicable code of conduct 
and relevant legislation and declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as 
appropriate. S.30(1) of the Localism Act 2011 provides that a member or co-opted 
member of a relevant authority must, within 28 days of becoming a member / co-opted 
member, notify the Monitoring Officer of any DPIs which the person has at that time.  
The Act also provides that where a person is re-elected or re-appointed as a member 
or co-opted member of the relevant authority, the requirement to update notification of 
DPIs applies only as regards any further DPIs which were not entered on the register 
when the notification was first given.   Failure to comply with the legislation with regard 
to disclosure and participation at meetings on disclosable pecuniary interests is a 
criminal offence. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

6.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

6.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable. 

Page 36



6.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

Equality and Diversity 

6.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

6.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable 

6.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Page 37



Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Registers not maintained or 

incomplete 

Members could be in 

breach of the 

code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of code 

and sufficient awareness 

and training 

Members fail to make 

appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 

failure to declare or 

participating in 

proceedings where they 

have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 

declarations are made and 

registers up to date and 

training provided 

Contact Officers 

Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 28/09/22 28/09/22 

Deputy Monitoring Officer Report Author  Report Author  

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 28/09/22 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 10/10/22 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

 

Page 38

mailto:julia.krier@southlakeland.gov.uk


South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 10 October 2022 

Review of Employee Register of Interests and Gifts 
and Hospitality and Member Gifts and 

Hospitality  

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Hennessy – Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Good governance and transparency links to the Council’s achievement of its Council Plan 
priorities and objectives. 
 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 This report is presented to review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality for 
employees and Members since the last update to the Committee in October 2021. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the report and appendices.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Code of Conduct for South Lakeland District Council Employees there are 
requirements to declare any interests, gifts and hospitality as detailed therein. Copies 
of the Code of Conduct for Employees can be found within the Council’s Constitution.  

3.2  For employees there are standard corporate forms to complete for declarations of 
interest, gifts and hospitality.  Gifts and offers of hospitality that are declined should 
also be included in any declarations.   

3.3  The Standards Committee has an overview of the Employee register of interests, gifts 
and hospitality and is requested to review this on an annual basis. The previous review 
took place in October 2021. 

3.4  The Code of Conduct requires employees to notify the Monitoring Officer of all gifts 
and hospitality which they have received where the value is £25 or more or where any 
gift or hospitality in connection with their duties is declined.   

3.5  During the period 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 one employee declared a 
gift/hospitality which was declined, as detailed in Appendix 1.  So far in this year from 
01 April 2022 to date no employees have declared a gift/hospitality. 

Page 39

Item No.10



3.6 The Code of Conduct also requires employees to register personal interests in 
decision-making or working practices.  The registration of interests protects the 
employee by giving early warning of any possible areas of conflict of interest and 
provides assurance to the public that the employee is acting transparently. Registration 
of personal interests is only required in areas where there are clear grounds for 
concern that such an interest could give rise to accusations of partiality in decision 
making and working practice of the authority. Employees must register, within 28 days 
of taking up their appointment or of those interests arising, in writing to the Monitoring 
Officer or the Chief Executive as appropriate, any interest (Financial / Non-Financial) 
as set out in the Constitution.   

3.7  During the period 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, one officer recorded a declaration 
of interest, as set out in Appendix 1.  From 01 April 2022 to date, one further officer 
has recorded a declaration of interest as set out in Appendix 2.  

3.8  Member Gifts and Hospitality 

The Member Code of Conduct requires Members to declare details of any persons 
from whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at 
least £50. Members must register any gifts or hospitality worth £50 or over that are 
received personally in connection with Members’ official duties.  The Code also 
requires that Members register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with 
an estimated value of at least £50 that has been offered but which the Member has 
refused to accept.  During the periods 01 April 2021 to March 2022 and 01 April 2022 
to date, no Members declared gifts / hospitality meeting those thresholds.   

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Employee Register of Interests, Gifts/Hospitality Log April 2021 to 

March 2022 

2 Employee Register of Interests, Gifts/Hospitality Log April 2022 to 

present  

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 All Lead Specialists have been reminded of the need for officers to declare gifts / 
hospitality and interests. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 There are no alternative options. This review forms part of the Standards Committee 
work programme. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 N/A 

Human Resources 

7.2 N/A 

Legal 

7.3 Under the Code of Conduct for Council Employees in the Constitution, officers are 
required to declare appropriate interests and any gifts and hospitality received.  The 

Page 40



Code of Conduct for members provides that members must register gifts / hospitality 
within the thresholds set out in para 3.10 above. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No    

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts – N/A 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts – not applicable 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Page 41



Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Register is not maintained or 

incomplete 

Employees / Members at 

risk of breaching the 

respective code of conduct 

Regular monitoring and 

sufficient awareness for 

employees and Members 

Contact Officers 

Julia Krier – Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer)  

Julia.Krier@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 28/09/22 28/09/22 

Deputy Monitoring Officer Report Author Report Author 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 28/09/22 

Portfolio Holder 28/09/22 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 42

mailto:Julia.Krier@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

Employee Register of Interests, Gifts/Hospitality Log (01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022) 

Date Officer 
Name 

Directorate Donor 
host 
name 

Details of 
offer 

Estimated 
value of offer 

Accepted/ 
refused 

Reason Details of 
registered 
interest 

Additional notes 

17 
September 
2021 

Stewart 
Martin 

Strategy 
Innovation 
and Resources 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Trustee of 
Cumbria 
Council for 
Voluntary 
Services 
 

Action noted not to 
partake in any 
meetings with 
Cumbria CVS, nor 
play any role in the 
decision whether or 
not to endorse 
them to become 
the lead 
organisation for the 
South Lakeland 
Poverty Truth 
Commission  

03 March 
2022 

Lucy 
Gibson 

Customer and 
Commercial 

District 
Councillor 

A card with 
a cash gift 
was 
offered in 
thanks for 
providing 
assistance 
in the 
course of  
the 
officer’s 
duties 

£50.00 Refused Not 
appropriate 
– 
assistance 
provided in 
the course 
of officer’s 
duties 

n/a n/a 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 44



Appendix 2 

Employee Register of Interests, Gifts/Hospitality Log (01 April 2022 to date of this report) 

 

Date Officer 
Name 

Directorate Donor 
host 
name 

Details of 
offer 

Estimated 
value of offer 

Accepted/ 
refused 

Reason Details of 
registered 
interest 

Additional notes 

19 August 
2022 

Simon 
Anstey 

Strategy, 
Resources and 
Innovation 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Trustee of 
Milnthorpe 
Family Centre  

Action for officer 
not to take part in 
any decision 
making in relation 
to grant award 
applications or 
funding  

 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 46



Standards Committee Work Programme October 
2021- March 2023 

March 
2022 

October 2022 March 2023 Comments 

Standards Committee Training for new Members of 
Standards Committee and refresher training offered 

to existing members 
 

 √   

Newly Elected District Councillors Induction 
Training 

 

 √  Annually 

Review of Officers and                  Members Gifts and 
Hospitality 

 √   

Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be an 
Effective Member for District Councillors 

   Annually 

 
Inspect Registers of Interests for District and Parish 

Councillors 
 

 √  Annually 

 
Consider and adjudicate Dispensation 

Requests 
 

 

   As required and update 
the website  

Establishment of a Council wide Governance and 
Accountability working 

Group 

   To meet monthly  

Review of website 
 
 

 √ √ √ 

Review of member officer protocol 
 

 √ √ As part of the review of 
the constitution  

Review of expiration of all dispensations  √ √  

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the LGO  
 

 √   

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council  
 

√  √  

  
Publicise Role and Work of Standards Committee, and 
the Effectiveness of Standards Committee through the 

Annual Report to full Council 
 

   On going 

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards Committee 
with Parish and Town Councils 

 

   All year  

Conduct yearly review of complaints, comments and 
compliments procedure 

 

 √   

 

P
age 47

Item
 N

o.11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 48


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Terms of Reference
	6 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, Complaints received from April 2021 to March 2022
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, Complaints received from April 2021 to March 2022  - Appendix 1
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, Complaints received from April 2021 to March 2022  - Appendix 2
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, Complaints received from April 2021 to March 2022  - Appendix 3
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review, Complaints received from April 2021 to March 2022  - Appendix 4

	7 Code of Conduct Complaints
	Code of Conduct Complaints  - Appendix 1

	8 District Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Registrable Interests
	9 Parish Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Registrable Interests
	10 Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality
	Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality  - Appendix 1
	Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality  - Appendix 2

	11 Standards Committee Work Programme

